NATIONS CERD

International Convention on Distr.
] . . CGENERAL
the Elimination
of all Forms of CERD/ C/ SR. 1169

. ) . . . 6 Novenber 1996
Racial Discrimination
ENGLI SH
Oiginal: FRENCH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Forty-ninth session
SUMMVARY RECORD OF THE 1169t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Tuesday, 13 August 1996, at 3 p.m

Chai rman: M. BANTON

CONTENTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMVENTS AND | NFORVATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Fourth to seventh periodic reports of Nami bia
Tenth to thirteenth periodic reports of Venezuel a

This record is subject to correction

Corrections should be subnitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menorandum and al so i ncorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 96-17820 (E)



CERD/ C/ SR. 1169
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3 p. m

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMVENTS AND | NFORVATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
I N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item 5) (continued)

Fourth to seventh periodic reports of Namibia (CERD ¢ 275/ Add. 1)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, M. Nujona (Nanibia) took a place at
the Comrmittee table.

2. The CHAI RVAN, noted that the report under review was the first report
submitted by the Nami bi an Governnent since Nami bia had achi eved i ndependence
and extended a special welconme to the representative of the State party.

3. M. NUIOMA (Namibia), introducing his country’s report, said that

part |, “General”, summarized the information in the core docunment on
Nam bi a’s col onial past, the liberation war fought under the banner of SWAPO
and the country’s accession to independence on 21 March 1990.

4, Part 11, as its title indicated, contained information relating to
articles 2 to 7 of the Convention. The people of Nanmi bia had deci ded never to
return to their colonial past of racial discrinmination, and after independence
t he Government had introduced a policy of national reconciliation ainmed at
encouragi ng all Nam bians to work together to devel op the country in peace and
unity, with racial discrinmnation in all its forns outl aned.

5. Certain acts and practices of racial discrimnation carried extremnely
harsh penalties (Racial Discrimnation Prohibition Anendnment Act, 1991).
Nami bi a had inherited a consi derable body of |egislation which blatantly

di scrim nated agai nst blacks. Mst of that |egislation had been repeal ed sone
even before independence. Measures had al so been taken to ensure that no one
was refused access to comunity facilities or nenbership in an association
for exanple, for reasons based solely on race, colour or ethnic origin. Not
all racially discrimnatory |egislation had been repeal ed or anended, however.
The CGovernnent had taken affirmative action to redress inbal ances resulting
fromapartheid in sectors such as education and enpl oynent (para. 15).
Incitement to racial discrinmination was prohibited by law. The policy of

nati onal reconciliation had been fully accepted by all Nanmibians. |In the five
years since i ndependence, only one case relating to racial discrimnation had
been brought before the courts (para. 26). It was clear fromthe case in

question that it was the private sector, not the State or administration, that
was responsible for problens of racial discrimnation. Section 11 (1) (b) of
the Act of 1991, under which those persons had been charged, was in fact
broader than article 4 of the Convention, and would therefore need to be
anended. One drawback of the Act was that section 18 stipulated that no trial
for an of fence under the Act could be instituted without the witten authority
of the Prosecutor-General in each case (para. 27). That was a serious and
unusual obstacle, and woul d appear to indicate that Nami bia did not provide
the victins of discrimnatory acts with an effective renmedy as required by
article 6 of the Convention.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1169
page 3

6. G vic education was part of all school curricula (para. 31). A
Committee for Givic Education, which included private organizations as well as
governnental institutions, had been established. To date, it had organized
two maj or conferences on civic education in Nam bia and drafted the bl ueprint
for a framework for civic education (para. 32).

7. The report had been prepared by the Mnistry of Justice, with
contributions fromother ministries and from non-governnental organizations.
The NGOs had rai sed the objections to the powers of the Prosecutor-Genera
whi ch he had nentioned earlier. He believed that Nam bia was on the right
track, that racial discrinination did not have an adverse effect on nationa
life and that the policy of national reconciliation was bearing fruit.

8. M. CH GOVERA (Country Rapporteur) paid tribute to Nam bia for
conscientiously fulfilling its international obligations: having acceded to
i ndependence only six years earlier, and despite serious difficulties, it was
al ready submitting a report to the Committee, which was inpressive. 1In his
view, the report should be considered an “initial” report, for it represented
the first opportunity that Nam bia had had to describe the |egislative or
administrative neasures it had taken to conbat racial discrimnation. The
report had been conpiled according to the Comittee’ s guidelines. The

guesti ons and comments he woul d make shoul d therefore not be taken as
criticism but as ways of obtaining additional infornmation

9. He wel coned the policy of national reconciliation introduced by the
Governnent (para. 4), which was the cornerstone of the stability enjoyed in
Nami bia. He would like additional information on the different |inguistic
groups nentioned in paragraph 5 of the report and their distribution anong the
di fferent regions of Namibia. Specifically, what was the Government doing to
bring the Bushnmen into the political, social and econonic mainstrean? Had the
CGovernment taken preferential neasures to provide the majority black

popul ation with a |arger proportion of productive and and raise its standard
of living? Were did people of mixed race fall in terms of land distribution
as referred to in paragraph 5 of the report?

10. Concer ni ng paragraph 7, he wondered whether the Constitution contained
crimnal provisions to ensure inplenentation of the Convention or whether it
permtted Parlianment to enact the necessary crimnal |egislation. He would
al so appreciate it if the Conmttee could be provided with the provisions of
the 1991 Act eradicating racial discrimnation, for exanple when Nanibia's
next report was consi dered.

11. He noted (paras. 11 to 13), that there were two parallel systens of |aw
governing estates and succession in Namibia, one applicable to whites and

col oureds and the other to blacks. That was a situation frequently found in
Africa, especially in fornmer British colonies, where African custonary |aw
coexi sted with so-called general law The question was whether the existence

of two parallel systens anounted to “racial discrimnation”. Since customary
| aw was part of the African way of |ife, he wondered whether the planned
“standardi zati on” (para. 13) was an appropriate approach. In any event great

care woul d need to be exercised. On another matter, what was nmeant by the
“usual nmarital regine” (para. 14)?



CERD/ C/ SR. 1169
page 4

12. It was inpressive that the affirnmative action policy was enbodied in the
Constitution (para. 13). According to the |ast sentence in paragraph 15, such
neasures shoul d be passed in the course of 1995. Had they been passed? Had
specific legislation been enacted pursuant to article 23 (1) of the
Constitution to prohibit and crimnalize racial discrimnation and the
practice and ideol ogy of apartheid? Wat [aw was being referred to in
paragraphs 18 and 19 of the report? Mght the text of that |aw be provi ded?
VWhat was neant by the preanbul ar provisions of the Constitution guaranteeing
fundarmental rights (para. 22)? Wre they substantive provisions? 1In the
third to fifth lines of paragraph 212 (“regardl ess of race, colour ...") no
nmention was made of national origin. Ws discrimnation based on nationa
origin permtted?

13. Wth regard to article 6 of the Convention, paragraph 23 of the report
nmentioned a State-sponsored |legal aid schene. How accessible was the schene
to indigent people, and had it been brought to the attention of people in
renote areas? Were the offices of the schene set up in various rura

| ocations? The sane paragraph nentioned the appoi ntnent of an Orbudsman, but
there was no indication of what remedi es the Onbudsnan provided in cases of
raci al discrimnation and how they were enforced.

14. Paragraph 26 of the report stated that only one case of racia
di scrimnation had been brought before the courts under the 1991 anti-raci al
discrimnation Act, and the State party’s renmarks generally gave the

i npression that problens in that area were under control. Yet a
non- gover nment al organi zati on, the National Society for Human Rights in
Nami bi a, said that racial discrimnation still existed in both the public and

private sectors. According to that organization's report, senior officials
and nenbers of the diplomatic corps were often appointed on the basis of
ethnic criteria, and CGovernment policy was based on tribalismand nepotism
Wt hout endorsing or rejecting the report’s contents, it would be useful to
know t he Nami bi an del egation’s views on the matter

15. He was troubled by the | ast sentence of paragraph 22, which appeared to
i ndicate that the protection provided to Nam bi ans under section 11 (1) (b) of
the 1991 anti-racial discrimnation Act m ght be reduced in order to bring
theminto line with the provisions of the Convention. Ws that so?

16. Par agraph 27 of the report contained a reference to article 18 of
the 1991 anti-racial discrimnation Act which stipulated that no trial would
be instituted without witten authority fromthe Prosecutor-General. He

wonder ed whet her that requirenent did not reduce the scope and effectiveness
of the Act. He would also like to know whether it applied to proceedi ngs
instituted by individuals.

17. The report also indicated, wi thout giving any details, that black
persons were still discrimnated against in many subtle ways. Further details
woul d be wel cone on that discrimnation and the steps taken by the authorities
to conbat it.

18. Concerning article 7 of the Convention, the introduction of civic
education as a cross-curricular subject directed at conbating raci al
di scrimnation was a conmendabl e step. |In particular, the establishnment of a



CERD/ C/ SR. 1169
page 5

cross-mnisterial national Commttee for G vic Education involving private
organi zations and institutions was a positive approach to establishing
suitable curricula geared to pronoting social harnony anong young people. He
woul d I'ike to know about the progress nmade by the Cormittee. |If the

del egation had no information, the Cormittee would wel come details in the next
report. Concerning education, he would |like to know whet her the segregation
exi sting under the apartheid regime continued, and if so, what measures had
been taken to integrate the educational system Did black children have
access to former white schools? It was unlikely that the social studies
curriculumfor grades 4 to 7 nmentioned in paragraph 34 of the report would be
effective if white and black children studied in segregated cl asses.

19. Par agraph 46 stated that racial discrimnation was not a probl em of
national life. The description in the report of the National Society for
Human Rights in Nam bia, however, was quite different: it stated that the
authorities had not taken sufficient steps to close the incone gap between the
different racial groups, that there had been several cases of discrimnation
agai nst bl acks in enploynment, especially in recruitment, training and
pronmotion and that the authorities hesitated to act on conplaints for fear of

i npedi ng the policy of national reconciliation. He would be interested in
hearing the views of the representative of the State party on those
statenents.

20. M. de GOUTTES said that a number of |essons could be drawn fromthe
report. First, racial discrinination had not di sappeared after Nami bia's
accession to i ndependence. Paragraph 6 of the report indicated that the white
popul ati on, which was no more than 5 per cent of the total, enjoyed a high
standard of living while nost of the black population lived in abject poverty.

Wde gaps still existed between the two comunities, especially in incong,
education, enploynent, housing and land distribution. D scrimnatory
legislation also still existed. The report (para. 11) nentioned the | aws

regul ati ng succession and the adm nistration of estates, which established
di fferent systens for whites, coloureds and bl acks. Paragraph 14 of the
report also indicated that there was a special systemfor narriage between
bl acks.

21. In view of that situation, the authorities had taken a nunber of steps,
especially through the Law Ref orm and Devel opnment Conmi ssi on and the Master of
the High Court. He would like to know what refornms had been undertaken and
whet her they were being conducted with respect for age-old custons, especially
regardi ng succession. Sinmilarly, nore details on the affirmative action
nmentioned in paragraph 15 of the report would be wel cone.

22. The di scussion on article 4 of the Convention woul d appear to indicate
that Nami bian | egislation |aid down punishnent for nost acts of racial

di scrimnation and conpensation for the victins. But the report gave only
two exanpl es of cases brought before the courts, which was very few for a
country like Nami bia, where the racist practices of the past had not

conpl etely disappeared. Were victinms informed of their rights, and did the
police and judicial authorities investigate cases of racial discrimnation
consci entiously? The very small nunber of cases brought before the courts

m ght al so be expl ai ned by the fact that, under section 18 of the 1991



CERD/ C/ SR. 1169
page 6

anti-racial discrimnation Act, no trial could be instituted without witten
aut hori zation fromthe Prosecutor-General. The information provided indicated
that that provision, which hindered the exercise of the right to bring a case
before the courts, mght soon be repealed. What exactly was the situation?

23. Knowi ng that the Nam bian authorities were deeply concerned about the
probl em of racial discrimnation, he would like to know whet her the CGovernnent
was pl anning to nake the declaration under article 14 of the Convention

24, Ms. ZQU said that, in view of Nam bia s colonial past, nmuch tine and
effort would be needed to elininate racial discrinnation permanently.
Paragraph 6 of the report indicated that what the white population earned in a
day of work, the urban black popul ation earned in two weeks and the rura

bl ack popul ation in one year. That was a wi de gap, and one was justified in
aski ng what neasures had been taken by the Governnent to renedy that

situation. Did whites and bl acks receive equal pay for equal work? Since

i mprovi ng the education of blacks was certainly the best neans of reducing the
gap between them and whites in the econonic and social area, what efforts were
the Government meking in that area, and especially, what steps had been taken
to end segregation in education and conbat illiteracy anmong bl acks? Wre all
bl ack children able to attend school, and what was the percentage of black
students in university?

25. M. VALENCI A RODRIGQJEZ said that the information in the “General”
section of the report showed that after many years of apartheid, fundanental
freedons were guaranteed in Nam bia under a denocratic regine which respected
t he i ndependence of the judiciary. Nevertheless, major disparities persisted
in the economc and social areas. Five per cent of the popul ation earned over
70 per cent of the incone, whereas 75 per cent of the very poor earned only

7 per cent. How were the authorities handling that situation, which was a
potential source of serious political problens for the country?

26. Wth regard to article 2 of the Convention, the adoption of the 1991
anti-racial discrimnation Act nentioned in paragraph 7 of the report was
commendabl e, but it would be useful to know how t he [ aw was i npl ement ed.

27. Paragraph 8 of the report described | egislative neasures under which no
public or private service could deny a person access to public amenities
solely on racial grounds. He would like to know whet her those neasures
concerned institutions only or whether they also applied to individuals.

28. Paragraph 11 of the report stated that Nami bia had inherited a

consi derabl e body of |egislation which blatantly discrimnm nated agai nst bl acks
and that not all such |egislation had been repeal ed or amended. Wre there
other such laws in addition to those nmentioned in the report, and if so, why
were they still in force? Concerning affirmative action, paragraph 15 of the
report stated that Parliament could enact |egislation providing for the
advancenent of socially, economically or educationally disadvantaged
Nam bi ans. Had such | egislation been enacted, and if so, what was its purpose
and whi ch categories of individuals was it supposed to protect?



CERD/ C/ SR. 1169
page 7

29. Regarding article 4 of the Convention, the neasures taken to punish

t hose responsi bl e for acts of discrimnation and racial violence were
conmendabl e. Since the delegation had indicated that the State party was
reviewi ng that |egislation, he would Iike to know whether it was planning to
anmend it to bring it fully into line with the provisions of the Convention

30. In view of Nam bia’s colonial past and continuing discrininatory
practices, the information provided in paragraph 22 on the nmeasures taken
pursuant to article 5 of the Convention should be expanded. Mre details
woul d be wel conme on how the rights laid down in article 5 were guarant eed.
Paragraph 23 of the report indicated that there were provisions which enabl ed
individuals to obtain remedies for violations of their rights. According to
par agraph 26, however, only one case of racial discrinination had been brought
before the courts under the 1991 anti-racial discrimnation Act, and that case
had been wi thdrawn in Septenber 1995. More information on that case would be
wel cone.

31. Wth regard to article 7 of the Convention, the steps taken in the areas
of education, culture and information were highly positive, and the Nani bi an
aut horities should be encouraged to continue in that direction

32. Ms. SADIQ ALl noted with satisfaction that Nani bia had submitted a
report reflecting its policy of national reconciliation. The fact that

non- gover nnent al organi zati ons had for the first tinme been involved in
preparing a report for the Conmttee was also a very positive step. The
report called for a few commrents, however. First of all, what had been the

i mpact of the austerity measures requiring all ministries to reduce their
budgets by 4 per cent to enable the Governnent to finance the anti-drought
programes? Second, what progress had been made in integrating black teachers
into white schools? The Cormittee would be very interested in know ng what
progress had been nmade in that area, which related to paragraph 2 (2) of the
Convention. According to information published in the press in May 1994,
agricultural workers in Namibia were exploited or ill-treated by white
farmers: there had reportedly been wongful dismssals, the workers were not
free to organi ze, they were underpaid and their |odgi ngs were depl orabl e.

VWhat were the authorities doing to ensure respect for the provisions of |abour
| egi sl ati on? How were abuses puni shed?

33. According to other information published in the press in June 1994,
there was only 1 black university student for every 500 whites, and positions
of responsibility in businesses continued to be held by expatriates for the
nost part. What was being done for the advancenent of black nmanagers and
executives? Concerning |and ownership, after 5 years of independence,

4,000 white farmers still owned 35 million hectares of farm and. Since
nationalization of |and was prohibited, |andowners had reportedly been asked
to give up land in a spirit of national reconciliation and in pursuance of the
new |l and reformlegislation. Since the |Iand question in Nam bia was cl osely
related to the probl ens of poverty and unenpl oynent, it would be very usefu
to know how nmuch | and had in fact been redistributed.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1169
page 8

34. The CHAI RVAN said that the Conmttee would continue its consideration of
the report of Namibia at a |later neeting.

35. M. Nujoma (Nam bia) withdrew.

Tenth to thirteenth periodic reports of Venezuela (CERD CJ 263/ Add. 8 and
CERD/ C/ 263/ Add. 8/ Rev. 1; HRI/ CORE/ 1/ Add. 3)

36. At the invitation of the Chairman, the Venezuel an del egati on took pl aces
at the Committee table.

37. M. SUAREZ FI GJERCA (Venezuel a) said that, for an understandi ng of the
probl em of racial discrimnation in his country, it was necessary first to
point out that for historical reasons over half of the population was the
product of a racial mx of |Indians, Europeans and Africans. Ethnic equality
had been established by successive constitutions, [aws and decrees since 1810,
and article 61 of the current Constitution prohibited discrimnation based on
race, sex, religious belief or social status.

38. It woul d be presunptuous, however, to state that there was no actua
raci al discrinmnation in Venezuela, for legal principles could be far renoved
fromthe actual situation in a society. Until 1958 (the year in which
denocracy had been re-established), there had been virtually no col oured
students in the nmilitary schools, and there had been no bl ack bishops unti

the early 1990s. Fortunately the situation had changed, for one of the three
mai n candi dates in the 1993 presidential elections had been col oured. The
question of racial equality in Venezuela had al so recently been the subject of
an interesting debate anobng experts.

39. Wth regard to indi genous people, according to a 1992 census there

were 315,815 Indians in Venezuel a belonging to 28 ethnic groups, conprising
1.5 per cent of the total population (20 million). For historical reasons,
nost of those ethnic groups lived in renote areas. The principle of equality
bet ween i ndi genous people and the rest of the Venezuel an popul ati on was
established, but the authorities had al so decided to take specific steps for
the protection and assimlation of indigenous people. It was difficult,
however, to reconcil e those two objectives, and the econom ¢ and social crisis
that had been affecting the country for about 10 years was aggravating the
problems. Anmong recent initiatives for inproving the situation were a bill on
i ndi genous conmuniti es, peoples and cul tures, approved by the Senate and
submtted to the Chanber of Deputies, which would unify |egislation on

i ndi genous people. The Government was al so considering ratifying |ILO
Convention (No. 169) concerning |Indigenous and Tribal Peoples in |Independent
Countries. In the judicial area, the Supreme Court had issued a judgenent, or
woul d do so shortly, on two cases involving indigenous |and rights and a third
case on human rights and tribal customary |aw. The census of indigenous
people in 1992 had produced sone val uable information fromthe admnistrative
poi nt of view Regarding education, follow ng the 1978 adoption of a decree
on bilingual intercultural education, in 1995, 18 teachers belonging to three
aborigi nal ethnic groups had obtained di pl omas. An agreenent on health
activities in the border areas had been concluded in 1991 between Col onbi a and
Venezuel a on behal f of indigenous popul ations, and the same year, two

bi osphere reserves had been established in the Delta del Oinoco.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1169
page 9

40. The authorities were the first to acknow edge that those efforts were
not enough, and they were prepared to work together with the 50 or so

i ndi genous organi zations in Venezuela to inprove the situation. His

del egati on was at the disposal of menbers who wi shed to rai se questions.

41. M. VALENCI A RODRI GUEZ (Country Rapporteur) said that Venezuela's

popul ation of 20 million included I arge indigenous, black and other mnority
groups. Venezuela also had large i mmigrant comunities of Spanish, Italian,
Portuguese and Gernan origin, and nany Col onbi ans, Ecuadori ans, Peruvi ans and
Bol i vi ans who had cone in search of work, often illegally. There were
reportedly over 1.5 mllion persons of foreign origin in Venezuela. According
to an ILO report, foreign workers in Venezuel a seermed in general to be
recruited and enpl oyed under the same conditions as nationals, although there
were occasionally some feelings of xenophobia. The Conmittee would appreciate
nore information in that connection

42. The report to the Conmittee, CERD/ CJ 263/ Add. 8/ Rev. 1, stated that
article 61 of the Constitution provided for the principle of equality and
prohi bited racial discrimnation. |ndigenous people (over 315,000 people
bel ongi ng to about 20 ethnic groups, according to 1992 figures) lived for the
nost part in renote and di sadvantaged regions. The nmany steps taken by the
Covernment to give effect to article 77 of the Constitution, which rmade
speci al provision for indigenous conmunities, included the establishnment of
several bodies for indigenous affairs and the Agrarian Reform Act for the
restitution of land, forests and water resources to indi genous comunities.
The Conmittee woul d appreciate nore details on the progress nmade possible by
those initiatives.

43. In the judicial sphere, the core docunent (HRI/CORE/ 1/ Add. 3) stated that
the incorporation of international treaties into donmestic |aw did not occur
automatically. Once the required special |aw was enacted, however, the
treaties in question (including the Convention) took precedence over other

l aws and could be invoked directly before the national courts. Simlarly,

i nternational human rights treaties ratified by Venezuel a acquired
constitutional force. The Venezuelan authorities used that argunment to
explain why there were no provisions prohibiting racial discrimnation in the
| egi slation despite the obligation laid down in article 4 of the Convention

44, Wth regard to article 5 of the Convention, he would like to know how
effect was given to article 50 of the Convention, which granted to the

i ndi vidual rights not expressly nentioned in the Constitution. Additiona

i nformation should al so be provided on the conditions under which foreigners
were entitled to vote in nunicipal elections.

45, Wth regard to article 6 there were no specific provisions enabling the
victins of acts of racial discrimnation to bring their case before the courts
and nobody for granting conmpensation. Neither the Organic Law on the anparo
procedure in force since 1987 nor article 374 of the Code of Crinmina
Procedure, both of which were very broad in scope, had been applied to cases
of racial discrimnation. Wth regard to article 7 of the Convention, the
Committee would like further information on the steps taken in the area of
education and in publicizing the Convention, in particular anong mnority
groups.



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1169

page 10
46. The report showed that the Venezuel an Government had fulfilled the | ega
obligation it had assunmed to submit periodic reports to the Conmittee. In

order to give full effect to the provisions of article 4, however, it should
enact special legislation of a preventive nature, as well as provisions
specifically to facilitate access to the courts by victins of racia

di scrimnation.

47. The fact that the Constitution recognized the rights of indigenous
peopl e, especially their right to cultural identity, was commendabl e.
Nevert hel ess, a report by the Venezuel an Progranme of Education and Action on
Behal f of Human Ri ghts (PROVEA) had noted that the provisions applicable to
those communities were scattered and gave rise to confusion and anxiety. The
Committee would therefore like information on bilingual education in

i ndi genous school s and the rel evant provisions of the Agrarian Reform Act.
Ammesty International and the Departnment of State of the United States of
Ameri ca had condemmed the abuses conmitted agai nst indi genous communities
during land conflicts. In 1994, three nenbers of the Yupca community had in
fact been killed by the arnmy. The nost prinitive indigenous comunity in
Venezuel a, the Yanomanis, were reportedly often raided by Brazilian gol d-
seekers, and foreign mining activities were said to be harning the indigenous

comunities and the environnent. It was also alleged that indigenous people
did not take part in the political system because they were not informed about
it and that they were often subjected to particularly serious ill-treatnent.

48. PROVEA' s 1994 report said that indigenous rights over mning and forest
resources and their environment were viol ated, even by State enterprises, as
was their right to life by the governnent security forces; according to
PROVEA, the State was making no effort to take the social neasures required in
order for indigenous people to be able to work their land, preserve their

heal th and receive bilingual education. The Indian National Council, for its
part, stated that the Governnent’'s efforts had not inproved the situation of

i ndi genous people and that the recommendations in articles 2 to 7 of the
Convention were not being properly inplenmented, which resulted in inmpunity for
t hose responsible for violations. Finally, the ILO Conmittee of Experts on
the Application of Conventions and Recommendations drew attention to the
gquotas for foreign workers, which violated its Mgrant Wrkers Convention. As
he woul d have preferred to hear all that information fromthe representative
of Venezuela, it was to be hoped that the next report would be nore specific
on those points and show that Venezuela was aware of its obligations as a
signatory of the Convention

49, M. YUTZIS said that, since the Conmittee had before it two reports of

Venezuel a, bearing the synbols CERD CJ/ 263/ Add. 8 - the synbol appearing in the
provi si onal agenda - and CERD/ C/ 263/ Add. 8/ Rev. 1, speakers should indicate to

whi ch report reference was being nade.

50. The CHAI RMAN said that the confusion would be cleared up by the next
neeting.




CERD ¢/ SR. 1169
page 11

51. M. GARVALOV said he doubted the Committee was very convinced by the
staterment at the begi nning of docunment CERD/ C/ 263/ Add.8 - that racial

di scrimnation had not existed in Venezuela for nore than a century - or the
reference to article 61 of the Constitution enshrining the principle of
equality for all citizens.

52. First of all, article 1 of the Convention interpreted racia
di scrimnation very broadly and laid down an obligation for States parties to
take a wi de range of measures to conbat it. |If the Conmittee took at face

val ue the sinple statenment that there was no discrimnation in Venezuela, it
woul d be adnmitting for the first time that a country could be totally devoid
of racial discrimnation. Yet at the very least, there were signs of
discrimination in the ill-treatnment of the Yanomanis and the Yupcas at the
hands of the Venezuel an soldiers. Although the Conmittee found constitutiona
guarantees to be commendable, it always pointed out that they remai ned a dead
letter until inplenenting |egislation was enacted and becane established
judicial practice.

53. He wel coned Venezuel @’ s adoption of a |law incorporating the Convention
into the country’s donestic legislation, but he did not see how the country
could inplenent that legislation properly wthout knowing the relative

i mportance of the various indigenous groups in the population. Yet the data
gat hered by the censuses had never been broken down by racial origin - which
according to the Governnent was proof that racial discrimnation did not

exist. In future, therefore, Venezuel an censuses should include specific data
on the indigenous popul ation. However small that population mght be, all its
rights - cultural, econonmic, social, civil and political, and not only its
freedom of religion and belief - should be protected.

54. M. de GOUTTES said that document CERD/ CJ 263/ Add. 8 showed that diverging
views continued to exist between the Conmittee and the Venezuel an Gover nnent,
but that some agreenment was al so energing. The nost inportant di sagreenent
related to the clainmed | ack of racial discrimnation in the country, which had
four consequences: no steps had been taken to conbat racial discrimnation

it was inpossible to describe the denographi c make-up of the popul ation; there
were no crimnal penalties for acts of racism and the Convention had never
been invoked before the courts. Al that was logical but clashed with the
Conmittee’s position, that all States parties nust provide information on the
steps they were taking to conmbat racial discrinmnation. Information from
various NGOs, in particular the Indian National Council, did indicate the

exi stence of racial discrimnation

55. There were, however, some signs of convergence between Venezuel a and t he
Conmittee in the report. The crimnalization of acts of racismas offences
was bei ng exam ned in the new Penal Code under consideration in the

| egi slature, as was a draft basic |aw designed to strengthen the rights of

i ndi genous groups and anendnments to article 77 (2) of the Constitution
providing for the protection of indigenous cultures within a State. He asked
about the status of those bills and whether the indigenous popul ati on had been
consulted on matters affecting it.



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1169
page 12

56. There was a contradiction between the statenent that prison regul ations
cont ai ned speci al provisions governing the treatnment of |ndians and the
statenment that the act concerning the penitentiary system made no provision
for special treatnment for Indians; he would like that point to be clarified.
He would also like nore information on the serious acts of discrimnation
reported by the Indian National Council and other NGOs in the areas of
justice, health and education, and on the acts of violence carried out by

| andowner s, m ning conpani es, tourist conpani es and even fundanentali st
religious missions, according to the same sources.

57. M. AHVADU, referring to CERD/ C/ 263/ Add. 8/ Rev. 1, asked about the
Venezuel an popul ation of African origin. The Government said that the
popul ati on was harnoniously integrated. The representative of Venezuel a had
al luded at the end of his statenent, however, to problens in that area.

Al t hough the Governnent itself was not applying discrimnatory neasures, and
al t hough the appropriate institutions existed, black Venezuel ans di d not
appear to play a significant role in national life in areas other than sports.
He asked to what extent the black population was represented in services like
the di pl omatic corps or the police.

58. Par agraphs 77 and 78 of the report repeated what had al ready been said
in the twelfth report and by the Venezuel an del egation in 1989, that since
raci al discrimnation did not exist in Venezuela, there was no need for
legislation in that area. Yet the representative of Venezuela had said in
1989 that the executive branch had asked the | egislative bodies to incorporate
provisions into the Penal Code to inplenent article 4 (a) of the Convention

He would |ike to know whet her that had been done.

59. Ms. ZQU al so stressed the need for rigorous enforcenent of the
provisions of the Constitution and the relevant legislation. The Conmittee,
whi ch was responsible for nonitoring the inplenentation of the Conventi on,
knew t hat there could be a | arge gap between | egislation and actua

i mpl ement ation, which was why it was particularly interested in the latter
Docunent CERD/ C/ 263/ Add. 8/ Rev.1 and the oral introduction fell short in that
respect.

60. The statenent that there was no racial discrimnation in Venezuel a
appeared to be questionable, for certain situations denonstrated otherwi se.
For exanpl e, the indigenous popul ations were renmoved fromthe rest of the
popul ation. Did that mean they lived on reservations, as in the United
States, and did that not inply discrimnation? She did not see why it was
i mpossible to integrate mnorities into the rest of the popul ati on w thout
causing themto lose their identity.

61. Paragraph 52 of the report stated that indi genous detai nees were treated
as separate groups. Did that not also inply discrimnation? She wondered in
t hat connecti on whet her indi genous people were tried by special courts, or by
speci al i zed, or indigenous, judges.



CERD ¢/ SR. 1169

page 13
62. She woul d also like more informati on on participation by indi genous
people in political life, and to be told whether there were indi genous nenbers

of Parlianent and whether they were consulted by the bodies that dealt with
i ndi genous matters.

63. The report |acked information on the illiteracy rate and the nunber of

i ndi genous peopl e conpleting primary school, secondary school and higher
educati on.

64. The Venezuel an del egation wit hdrew.

The neeting rose at 6 p.m




